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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT




Rinzing Financial Private Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

To the Shareholder(s) of Bhutan Power Corporation Limited,

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (the
Company), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2024,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respect,
of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial
performance and its Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bhutanese
Accounting Standards (BAS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Bhutan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We do not have any matters to report under this for the current audit.

Other Information
The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report (but does

not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with BAS, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as
a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions
misrepresentations, or override of internal control;

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our audit report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a Going
concern; and

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we enclose the Minimum
Audit Examination and Reporting Requirements as Appendix I with statements on the
matters specified therein to the extent applicable.

Further, as required under Section 265 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we report that:

a. We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c.  The Company’s Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and

d.  The Company has complied with other legal and regulatory requirements to the extent
applicable to the company.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited
Firm License No. 1036380

Tashi Rinzing Schmidt
Audit Partner
CPA License No. 34762

Date: 2/19 | Lo2S
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
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Minimum Audit Examination and Reporting requirements

As requirement by section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 and on the basis of such
checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we report as follows:

1

10.

11.

12.

The company maintains proper records detailing the full particulars of fixed assets,
including quantitative details and location. However, during physical verification,
discrepancies were identified due to mismatched custodian records and failure to update
disposed assets in the PVR. These inconsistencies have impacted asset tracking and the
authenticity of the PVR. Corrective actions, including updating SAP records and
reconducting physical verification as of the current date, have been recommended.

The company did not conduct a revaluation of its fixed assets during the year. However,
it was identified that lease liabilities and right-of-use (ROU) assets for land leases were
not recognized, which is non-compliant with BFRS 16. Management has since taken steps
to rectify this issue.

Physical verification of finished goods, stores, spare parts, and raw materials is
conducted at regular intervals. However, discrepancies were identified during the
physical verification of inventory balances for 'Construction of 33kV D/C Line using
ACSR (Wolf) Conductor from 132/33kV Yurmoo Substation to Project Site, Samcholing,'
particularly with the missing inventories as detailed in the Management Report.

The company follows procedures for physical verification of stocks that are reasonable
and adequate for its operations. However, issues with missing inventories and
discrepancies between SAP records and physical stock were noted at storage location
0016 (Plant THD1), which need to be reconciled.

No significant discrepancies were noted between the physical stock verification and book
records in general. However, inventory discrepancies amounting to Nu. 1,283,878.16
were found in the transfer to RSD, Gelephu, requiring immediate reconciliation.

The company has a robust system for recording receipts, issues, and consumption of
materials. However, there were instances of reclassification of mistakenly capitalized
inventory at an incorrect rate, leading to discrepancies amounting to Nu. 14,989,784.38,
which impacts asset values, depreciation, and inventory balances.

Quantitative reconciliation is carried out at the end of the accounting year for all major
inventory items. However, discrepancies between SAP records and actual physical stock
require immediate attention and correction.

The company reviews obsolete, damaged, slow-moving, and surplus inventories
regularly. This review process will be essential to resolve issues with items such as the
one found with a balance of Nu. 24,900, which no longer exists physically, leading to an
overstatement of inventory balances in SAP.

Obsolete and surplus inventories are disposed of in line with company policies. Proceeds
from such disposals are appropriately accounted for, and similar procedures will need to
be applied to resolve any unaccounted-for inventories.

The company seeks approval from the Board before writing off any material loss or
discrepancies in inventory. The missing inventory and discrepancies in the asset records
will require Board approval for adjustments.

The company’s stock valuation is conducted in accordance with applicable accounting
standards. However, discrepancies in inventory capitalization at the project site need to
be addressed, and necessary adjustments should be made to ensure compliance with
financial reporting standards.

The rate of interest and terms of loans availed by the company are fair and in line with
industry standards, ensuring no adverse financial impact.

4
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The company has not granted loans to other parties in violation of its Articles of
Incorporation. This practice remains in compliance with regulations.

Loans and advances granted to officers and staff are in compliance with service rules.
There is no indication of excessive advances in the current period, and monitoring
practices remain sound.

The company has an adequate system of internal controls to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records. However, improvements are needed in asset
tracking, custodian records, and inventory reconciliation to prevent discrepancies from
arising.

The company has a reasonable system of authorization at proper levels and internal
controls for issuing stores and allocating materials. There are no significant issues with
this system, though attention is needed for correcting the discrepancies in inventory.
The company follows a competitive bidding process for purchasing goods and services,
including stores, raw materials, and equipment, ensuring that procurement practices
align with industry norms and company policy.

(@) & (b) On the basis of reviewing the books of account and relevant records of the
Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the Company has not entered into any transaction for purchases and sale of
goods and service made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered into with the
director(s) or any other party(ies) related to the director(s) or with the Company or firms
in which the director(s) are directly or indirectly interested except DHI & its subsidiaries,
the details of which is duly disclosed in the Related party transactions in notes to accounts
to the financial statements. (b) The examination of records does not reveal any transaction
entered into by the Company which is prejudicial to the interest of the Company wherein
directors are directly or indirectly interested.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our test
checking of the accounts and other books and records, to the best of our knowledge, we
are of the opinion that no personal expenses has been charged to the Company accounts
other than those payable under contractual obligations/service rule and/or in
accordance with generally accepted business practice.

The company regularly reviews stores, raw materials, and finished goods for
unserviceability. Provisions for losses, if any, are made. It is important to monitor the
disposal of obsolete inventories to ensure proper provisioning and accounting.

This section is not applicable to the company.

This section is not applicable to the company.

This section is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing rates and taxes, duties, royalties, and provident funds
with the appropriate authorities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there was
no undisputed amount payable in respect of taxes, rates, duties, royalties, provident
funds and other statutory deductions outstanding as on the last day of financial year.
This section is not applicable to the company.

This section is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has a reasonable system of periodical review of tariffs and based on such
review and considering the market and economic conditions, the tariff rates are
determined and approved by the Electricity Regulatory Authority (ERA). Also, the
Company has proper costing system for the purpose of fixation of tariff rates.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the credit
sales policy of the Company is reasonable, and no credit rating of customers is carried
out as the same is not applicable for the Company.

This section is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does have a reasonable system of continuous follow-up with debtors and other
parties for recovery of outstanding amounts. Age wise analysis is carried out for
management information.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
management of liquid resources particularly cash/bank and short-term deposits etc. are
adequate and that excessive amount are not lying idle in non-interest-bearing accounts
and withdrawals of loan amounts are made after assessing the requirement of fund from
time to time and no excess amounts is withdrawn leading to avoidable interest burden
on the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
activities carried out by the Company are lawful and intra-vires the Articles of the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
activities /investment decisions are made subject to prior approval of the Board and
investments in new projects.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has established effective budgetary control system.

This section is not applicable to the company.

The details of remuneration, commission and other payments made in cash or in kind to
the Board of Directors including the Chief Executive Officer or any of their relatives
(including spouse(s) and child/children) if any, by the Company directly or indirectly
are disclosed in the notes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
management of the Company complies with the directives of the Board of Directors as
we have not come across any such incidence where it is not complied.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the officials
of the Company have not transmitted any price sensitive information which are not made
publicly available, unauthorized to their relatives / friends/ associates or close persons
which would directly or indirectly benefit themselves. We have however relied on the
management assertion on the same and cannot independently verify the same.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper
records are kept for inter unit transactions/services and arrangements for services made
with other agencies engaged in similar activities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
company ensures proper agreements are executed for leases, with reasonable terms. The
company adheres to these agreements when acquiring or leasing machinery/equipment.

In case of other service sector companies

1.

2

All matters specified in the minimum audit examination and reporting requirements are
applied to a service sector company.
The Company has a reasonable system of periodical review of tariffs and based on such
review and considering the market and economic conditions, the tariff rates are
determined and approved by the Electricity Regulatory Authority.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper
records are kept for inter unit transactions/services and arrangements for services made
with other agencies engaged in similar activities.

6
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper
agreements are executed and that the terms and conditions of leases are reasonable.

Computerized Accounting Environment:

3

The Company is using SAP as its enterprise resource planning (ERP) software, which has
been customized to meet the specific requirements of the company. Based on our review,
it appears that SAP is adequately configured to handle the company's financial
transactions and data processing needs. However, it is important to ensure that the
customizations align with the latest regulatory and operational requirements, especially
in light of audit findings, such as the discrepancies in SAP records and the missing
custodian details. Continuous monitoring and updates to the system should be
performed to mitigate risks and ensure compliance.

In our opinion, the Company has adequate safeguard measures and backup facilities in
place. The SAP system is equipped with secure backup protocols to protect data integrity
and prevent loss in case of system failure. Regular backups are performed, and files are
stored in secure, redundant locations to ensure business continuity. Based on the findings
of inventory discrepancies, it's crucial to verify that backup systems extend to include
critical asset and inventory data to safeguard against potential future discrepancies.

The Company has established proper backup facilities for storing files, as all files are
uploaded and maintained within SAP. In the context of recent audit findings regarding
missing inventories and asset discrepancies, it is important to review and confirm that
the backup systems effectively cover all relevant files, including those related to
inventory management, capitalized assets, and any other critical financial records.
Ensuring that backup files are comprehensive and up-to-date will mitigate the risk of
data loss impacting financial reporting.

The operational controls in place are generally adequate to ensure the correctness and
validity of input data and output information. SAP’s internal controls, such as validation
rules and audit trails, are implemented to verify data accuracy. However, discrepancies
such as the reclassification of capitalized inventory and missing inventory balances
highlight the need for additional scrutiny in the areas of inventory tracking and asset
management within the system. We recommend strengthening operational controls,
particularly in the areas of inventory and asset reconciliation, to avoid similar issues in
the future.

The Company has implemented appropriate measures to prevent unauthorized access to
the SAP system and its files. Security protocols, including user authentication, role-based
access control, and encryption, are in place. Given the audit findings regarding asset
tracking and discrepancies in SAP records, it is vital to ensure that access to critical
financial and asset-related data is tightly controlled and monitored. Regular audits of
user permissions and access logs should be conducted to identify any potential
vulnerabilities.

The Company ensured the completeness and integrity of data during the migration to
the new system, and the operation of SAP has been smooth post-migration. However,
issues related to inventory discrepancies, missing custodianship details, and incorrect
capitalizations during the migration phase suggest that data validation and integrity
checks were not fully effective in some areas. It is recommended that future data
migrations be accompanied by more rigorous validation procedures to ensure data
consistency, particularly in inventory and asset records, which have been a focus of recent
audit findings.
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Other requirements:

1. Going Concern Problem
Based on the attached Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, audited by
us, we have no reason to believe that the company is not a going concern on the statement of
financial position date.

2. Ratio Analysis
Relevant ratio analysis has been carried out and the details are under Section “Ratio

Analysis.”

3. Compliance with the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016
The company has complied with the various provisions of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016,
details are under section “compliance calendar & checklist.”

4. Adherence to Laws, Rules, and Regulations
The audit of the Bhutan Power Corporation Limited is governed by the Companies Act of
Bhutan 2016, Internal Service manual, and Bhutanese Accounting Standards. The scope of
audit is limited to examination and review of the financial statements prepared by the
management. During our audit, we have considered the compliance of the provisions of the
said Act, rules and regulations as well as the Bhutanese Accounting Standards.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited
Firm License No. 1036380

Tashi Rinzing Schmidt
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762
Date: 2/i4a[2os
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amount in Nu.)

Particular Note | December 31,2024 | December 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant, and equipment 4 42,920,819,966 38,831,495,566
Intangible assets 5 64,278,737 80,326,516
Right of use asset 6 43,629,916 28,039,277
Long-term loans and advances 7 13,857,529 4,022,012
Other receivables 8 1,634,707 199,330
Other non-current assets 9 29:772:373 34,593,727
Total non-current assets 43,073,993,228 38,978,676,428
Current assets
Inventories 10 665,303,988 893,404,759
Amounts due from customers for 1 1,405,548 119,230,945
contract work
Trade & other receivables 12 1,931,818,529 1,783,921,129
Cash and cash equivalents 13 280,607,493 1,311,339,683
Short-term loans and advances 7 8,637,929 4,153,603
Other current assets 14 782,838,576 459,075,376
Total current assets 3,670,612,064 4,571,125,495
TOTAL ASSETS 46,774,605,292 43,549,801,923
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 15 11,197,513,979 11,200,642,905
Retained Earning 5,537,672,179 4,905,665,623
Asset Replacement Reserve 225,160,517 212,388,921
Other Comprehensive Income (218,498,278) (231,610,570)
Total Shareholder’s equity 16,741,848,397 16,087,086,879
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 20,595,940,419 18,413,513,288
Deferred grants 17 1,251,443,021 1,318,112,322
Deferred Customer’s Contribution 18 101,900,059 74,830,064
Other payables 19 871,139,083 814,045,645
Employee benefit liabilities 20 782,509,053 684,983,730
Deferred Income Tax liabilities (Net) 21 1,732,067,762 1,477,390,490
Lease Liability 29 46,292,794 30,870,289
Total Non-current liabilities 25,381,292,190 22,813,745,827
Current liabilities
Borrowings 16 381,857,440 370,447,933
Deferred grants 17 63,471,222 63,604,611

9
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amount in Nu.)
Particular Note December 31,2024 | December 31, 2023
Deferred Customer Contribution 18 12,942,191 12,942,191
Amounts.due to customers for 11 135,620,599 76,102,240
construction contract
Trade & other payables 23 3,211,187,294 3,281,458,886
Employee benefit liabilities 20 297,878,464 411,229,167
Income tax payable (net of advance) 24 450,296,352 365,495,451
Other current liabilities 25 62,540,459 63,853,407
Lease Liability (land) 22 5,670,683 3,835,331
Total current liabilities 4,621,464,705 4,648,969,217
Total liabilities 30,002,756,895 27,462,715,044
Total equity and liabilities 46,744,605,292 43,549,801,923

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762

Date: 3jia/ 2025

Place: Thimphu, Bhutan

For Bhutan Power Corporation Limited:

Mr.

10
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Chief Executiv

Tobj :
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Mr. Chencho T.Namgay
Chairperson, BARC

Ms. eydem
Directo#, CSD
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amount in Nu.)
Particular Note December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Revenue
Income from sale of electricity 26 22,973,612,369 16,234,652,283
Income from construction contracts 27 195,217,535 2,287,412,240
Wheeling charges 1,595,343,159 1,318,531,303
Other income 28 334,468,120 367,908,472
Total Revenue 25,098,641,183 20,208,504,298
Expenditure
Purchase of electricity 16,645,056,462 11,286,825,307
Constru'chon material consumed and sub- 173,195,098 2207.009,667
contracting charges
Operation and maintenance expenses 29 490,494,928 518,761,902
Employee benefit expenses 30 1,782,227,897 1,383,187,356
Finance costs 31 1,024,465,676 1,019,650,615
h‘o;ts) /(gain) on foreign currency fluctuation (271,516,534 (121,604,217)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,880,901,625 1,774,404,337
Other expenses 32 378,524,574 318,510,856
Total Expenditure 22,103,349,727 18,386,745,822
Profit before income tax 2,995,291,456 1,821,758,475
Tax expenses
- Current tax (2024) 965,429,580 424,468,758
- Deferred tax 21 254,677,272 146,773,393
- Tax Adjustment of earlier years 66,586,401 104,832,309
Net Profit for the year 1,708,598,203 1,145,684,017
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains/ (loss) 13,112,292 (33,050,227)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,721,710,495 1,112,633,790
Earnings Per Share 33 152.59 102.25

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in

accompanying notes.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762
Date: 3/ 14 [ 2025
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan

conjunction with the

For Bhutan Power Corporation Limited:

Mr=Chencho T.Namgay
Chairperson, BARC

\

Ms. Ki
Director, #SD
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amount in Nu.)
Particular December 31,2024 | December 31, 2023
Cash flows from / (used in) operating
activities
Profit-before income tax 2,995,291,456 1,821,758,475
Adjustments for:

.| Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,880,901,625 1,774,404,337
Losg on disposal of property, plant and 33,480,003 105,352,002
equipment
Interest expenses on borrowings 951,750,828 919,965,543
Interest income - (5,925,048)
Unwu?dmg of dlsFount on retention, security 72,714,848 99,685,071
deposit & borrowings
Prevision for doubtful debts - -
Provision on Obsolescence of Material 1,443,881 (2,506,330)
Prior period adjustment (6,479,363) (383,210,026)
Liabilities no longer required written back (2,531,165) (18,290,184)
Amortization of deferred grants (66,802,690) (66,802,690)
Amortization of deferred customer
G (14,384,607) (13,597,008)
Operating profit before working capital 5,845,384,817 4,230,834,145
changes
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 226,656,890 (247,815,420)
Increase in amounts due from customers for 117,825,397 306,507,493
contract work
Decr'ease / (Increase) in trade and other (149,332,777) (649,262,845)
receivables
Decrease / (Increase) in current and non- (240,523,035) 500,110,925
current assets
Increase in long-term and short-term loans and (14,319,844) 4,038,119
advances
Decrease in amounts due to customers for

59,518,359 (1,145,830,279)
contract work
Increase in trade and other payables (67,740,427) 938,416,335
(Decreasg) / . I.n.crease in other current & non- 73,038,348 106,532,920
current liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provision (2,713,088) 190,515,428
Net cas.h generated from operating activities 5,847,794,640 4,234,046,821
before income tax
Income tax paid, net of refunds received (947,215,080) (298,625,296)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,900,579,560 3,935,421,525
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Repayment of Borrowings

Interest paid

Payment of dividend on ordinary shares
Payment of Finance cost-Lease

Share Capital (MHPA ATS Capitalization)
Net cash generated from/use in financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year

Loss/ (gain) on foreign currency fluctuation

(1,463,817,572)
(413,820,776)
(1,057,340,690)

(Amount in Nu.)

Particular December 31, 2024 | December 31, 2023
Cash used in investing activities
Purchgse of property, plant and equipment and (5,880,170,642) (2,022,700,614)
Intangible assets
Receipt of deferred grants - -
Receipt of deferred customer contribution
Procezds from sale of property, plant and ot 2033033

: ' (123,078,246) (337,036,990)
equipment
Redemption of bank term deposits (net) (107,287,074) -
Interest received 28,868,263 56,996,512
Net cash used in investing activities (6,040,213,096) (2,300,708,039)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 3,323,264,212 905,490,807

(412,767,605)
(324,829,102)
(806,687,403)

(4,738,369) (3,158,220)
(3,128,926) 43,140,905
380,417,880 (598,810,618)
(759,215,657) 1,035,902,867
1,311,339,683 397,041,032

(271,516,534)

(121,604,217)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

280,607,493

1,311,339,683

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

ST
Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner
CPA License No. 34762
Date: /14 2025
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan

Mr.
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Chief Executiyfe
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For Bhutan Power Corporation Limited:

.

Mr. Chencho T.Namgay
Chairperson, BARC

Ms. em
Directog CSD
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS




Rinzing Financial Private Limited

1.  General Information

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (‘Company’) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Druk
Holding & Investments (DHI), A Royal Government of Bhutan undertaking. The Company
has been incorporated and registered under The Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 with limited
liability. The registered office of the Company is located at, Bhutan.

The Company is engaged in the supply of electricity to the residents of the Kingdom of Bhutan
and wheeling of electricity from the large Hydropower Plants in Bhutan for export to India.
The Company also carries out business of construction of electricity project and distribution
network system.

The Company owns, operates and maintains the entire electricity transmission and
distribution network in the Kingdom of Bhutan. Apart from construction of distribution
network system, the Company is also mandated to construct the associated Transmission
Lines and Substations required for evacuation of power from Hydropower Plants to the
Bhutan-India border.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024, were
authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated March
5, 2025. The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with and are fully
compliant with the Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS), except as stated otherwise in the
financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared
in accordance and to comply with the Bhutanese Accounting Standards and the relevant
provisions of The Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016.

These financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting with the
historical cost convention and going concern basis except as stated otherwise in the Financial
Statements. The preparation of the Financial Statements requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities may differ from the estimates. In areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Foreign currency translation

i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates referred to as the “functional
currency”. The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Bhutanese
Ngultrum.
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Rinzing Financial Private Limited

ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if,
itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Property, plant, and equipment are initially recognized at historical cost. The historical cost of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of
acquisition and comprises its net purchase price after deducting for any trade discount and
rebates, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (Refer note 2.13 below for
accounting policy of borrowing cost). The cost of self-constructed assets not put to use and
advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
Statement of Financial Position date, are disclosed as Capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent
expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Spare parts and servicing equipment are normally treated as inventory and expensed as
consumed. However, major spare parts and stand-by equipment are treated as property, plant
and equipment when they are expected to be used during more than one year. Also, where
the spares parts or servicing equipment can only be used in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives. Freehold land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful
life whereas leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line method over the primary term of
the lease.

The Company has based on evaluation performed by the technical Department established
the estimated range of useful lives of assets for depreciating its property, plant.a ent
as follows:
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Buildings 30 years
Generation Civil works 30 years
Transmission assets 30 years
Distribution assets 30 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Vehicles 6.67 years
Furniture and Fixtures : 10 years
Office equipment 5 years

Significant parts of property, plant and equipment which are required to be replaced at
intervals and have specific useful lives are recognized and depreciated separately.

The useful life, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
appropriately, at least at each Statement of Financial Position date to ensure that the method
and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits.
Change in the estimated useful life, residual value and / or depreciation method, if any, is
depreciated prospectively over the asset’s remaining revised useful life.

The cost and the accumulated depreciation for property, plant and equipment sold, scrapped,
retired, disposed of or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use, are derecognized from the financial statements. The gains and losses are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include identifiable capitalized software costs and are recognized at cost of
acquisition/implementation less accumulated amortisation and any other provision for
impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included only when it is probable that the item
associated with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be reliably
measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are recognized only when the asset created can be
identified and it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits and
the costs can be measured reliably. Otherwise, the expenditure is charged to profit and loss
for the year of incurring the expenditure.

Amortisation is calculated and recognized using the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life as estimated by the management.

The useful lives and the amortization methods are reviewed annually and are adjusted as
appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognized as a change in the
accounting estimate.

An intangible asset is derecognized when disposed of or when no future benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gains and losses are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

17
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each Statement of Financial Position date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal or external factors. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If the carrying
amount of asset/cash generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount on the reporting date,
the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
measured as the higher of the net selling price and the value in use determined by the present
value of estimated future cash flows.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss section of Statement of Comprehensive
Income except for assets previously revalued, where the revalued amount is taken to Other
Comprehensive Income (the “OCI’). For such assets, the impairment is recognized in OCI up
to the amount of previous revaluation.

Income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recoverable from or payable to the Income tax authority based on the current period’s
taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date by the Income Tax Authority.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except
when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized, except when the deferred income tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on net basis. Management evaluates positions taken in income tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable income tax regulation is subject to

interpretation. (‘ﬁ’ PRI

The income tax liabilities are recognized when, despite the Company’s belief that it:

I
tax return positions are supportable, the Company believes, it is more likely than n b@sedi@
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on the technical merits, that certain positions may not be fully sustained upon review by
income tax authorities. Benefits from tax positions are measured at the single best estimate of

the most likely outcome.

At each Statement of Financial Position date, the tax positions are reviewed, and to the extent
that new information becomes available which causes the Company to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing income tax liabilities, such changes to income tax liabilities
are duly recognized in income tax expense in the year in which such determination is made.

Interest and penalties, if any, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are
included in income tax charge for the year in which the assessment is completed.

Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in
the following categories:

a. Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
b. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);
and
c. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
The classification of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

- Business Model Test: The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets for collecting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the asset prior to its financial
maturity to realize its fair value changes); and

- Cash Flow Characteristics Test: Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in Interest income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables, bank fixed deposits, security deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and employee loans, etc.

(2) Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVTOCI):
A financial instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehengj
if both of the following conditions are met:
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- Business Model Test: The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- Cash Flow Characteristics Test: The Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Financial instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting period at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). The category generally applies to Unquoted - Other
Investments held by the Company.

(3) Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Fair value through profit and loss is the residual category. Any financial instrument which
does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income is classified at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within FVTPL
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value. Fair value
movements are recorded in statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment of financial assets, based on expected credit loss model as
per BFRS-9 provides that impairment of financial assets will be done. Accordingly, the
Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired, and in that case the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through Provisions / Allowance for Impairment Loss
Account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the Provisions / Allowance for Impairment Loss Account, to the extent
the impairment loss was previously recognized on the respective asset. The amount of such
reversal is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(d) Derecognition of financial assets

(e) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been expired/transferred, or

b. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has substantially
transferred all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognized. When the Company has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

When the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all ris
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the e
has not retained control of the financial asset. When the entity retains control of the fin
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asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the
asset.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities
include trade and other payables and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in BFRS 9 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in other comprehensive income. These gains/losses are not
subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial Liability at Amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by trade and other payables, security
deposits and retention money are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate.

Borrowings

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the repayment amount is
recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations incurred by the Company towards purchase of
electricity and other goods and availing the services that have been acquired or availed in the
ordinary course of business. Trade and other payables are classified under current liabilities,
if payment is due within 12 months as at Statement of Financial Position date, if not, they are
classified under non-current liabilities. They are recognized initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or exp1res When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same.
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modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances and deposits, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and cash equivalent and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories
Inventory consists of stores and spares held for operation and maintenance and use in
construction of an asset.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost formula and comprises cost of purchases and other incidental
expenses incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition.

As per DHI group accounting policies and BAS 2 requirement, the valuation of inventories
should be based on the lower of cost or net realizable value. However, in the case of BPC,
where inventories consist of unique items not readily available in the domestic market, the
purchase cost is assumed as the net realizable value.

Asset Replacement Reserve
Reserve created to mitigate the risk of assets of the Company against any damages due to
natural calamities.

Grants

Grants from Government and Non-Government sources are recognized where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

Grants relating to expense items are recognized as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. The
unallocated portion of such grant is presented as part of Deferred Grants in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Grants related to non-current assets are treated as Deferred Income in the Statement of
Financial Position and are recognized to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the related assets.

Grant received as compensation for expenses/losses already incurred or with no future
related costs is recognized as income in the year it is received or becomes receivable.

Customer’s Contribution for network construction / expansion
Contribution received from customers towards the construction / extension of distribution
network / assets at the customer’s site is treated as Deferred Customer’s Contribution in the
Statement of Financial Position and is recognized to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related distribution network / assets and the
distribution network / assets are capitalised under Property, plant and equipment. ?|
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Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that Company incurs in connection with

the borrowing of funds.

General and specific borrowing costs (net of investment income on temporary investment of
those borrowings) that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the costs of the asset, until such time the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, which
is two years or more as decided by the Company keeping in view the nature of assets and past
trend of time taken for their completion.

All other borrowing costs are charged as expense to Statement of Comprehensive Income in
the period they occur.

Employee benefit liabilities
Contribution to Provident Fund administered by National Pension and Provident Fund is
charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income as and when they fall due.

Retirement benefit liabilities are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

Gratuity, Travel Allowance and Separation Allowance are provided for based on actuarial
valuation as at the Statement of Financial Position date. Retirement benefit liabilities are
discounted to present value applying the pre-tax rate of return on Government bonds of
similar tenure and currency. Increase in the liability due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

Further, the contribution towards the gratuity liability is invested in fixed deposits with the
banks.

The expected cost of Performance Based Variable Pay is recognized as an expense when there
is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Description of
performance obligations are as follows:

Wheeling Charges
Wheeling charges are accounted on the basis of periodic billing to the power generating
companies at the tariff rates approved by the Bhutan Electricity Authority. Input Method is
used to recognize revenue after adjustment for line loss.
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Sale of Electricity

Revenue attributable to sale of electricity is accounted for as per tariff rates approved by
Bhutan electricity authority on the basis of billing to consumer under the billing cycle followed
by the company including interest on delayed payment. Revenue is recognized as electricity
is delivered and consumed by customers. Revenue also includes subsidy claims from royal
government of Bhutan. Electricity delivered and consumed by customers for which bill has
not been raised at the end of the reporting period is estimated and revenue is recognized
accordingly as unbilled revenue.

Construction Contracts

Revenue from a Contract to provide services is recognized over time based on Input method
where the extent of progress towards completion is measured based on the ratio of costs
incurred to date to the total estimated costs at completion of performance obligation. Revenue,
including estimated fees or profits, are recorded proportionally based on measure of progress.
Output method where direct measurements of value to the customer based on surveys of
performance completed to date.

Liquidated damages and penalties

Liquidated damages and penalties occur when contractors/suppliers fail to meet the key
performance indicators set out in their contract with the Company. Income resulting from
claims for liquidated damages and penalties are recognized as other income when all
performance obligations are met (including when a contractual entitlement exists), it can be
reliably measured and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Earnings per share ("EPS’)

The Company presents the basic and diluted EPS data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the net profit for the year attributable to the ordinary
shareholders and by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividends
Dividends (including interim dividends) to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a liability
and deducted from shareholders’ equity in the period in which the dividends are
recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the ordinary shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

a) The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation arising as result of
past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation, at the balance sheet date and are not
discounted to its present value.

b) A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a present obligation arising
as a result of past event that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Lease

BPC recognizes a lease as a lease liability and a right-of-use asset if the lease transfers the right
to control the use of an underlying asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The lease liability should be measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the balance sheet date. The right-of-use asset should be measured at cost, which is
equal to the lease liability, plus any initial direct costs incurred, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset should be depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
the useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease that do not meet the recognition criteria will continue as operating lease and shall
be recognized in statement of Profit and Loss and disclosed accordingly.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements.
Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could differ
materially from these estimates. Changes in estimates are recorded in the year in which they
become known.

Actual results may differ from management’s estimates if these results differ from historical
experience or other assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate, even if such
assumptions were reasonable when made.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the date of statement of
financial position, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about
conditions existing as at the statement of financial position date.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying values of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

i) Useful lives of property, plant, and equipment

The costs of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
respective useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these assets as detailed in
the accounting policy vide note 2.3. Changes in the expected level of usage, technological
developments, level of wear and tear could impact the economic useful lives and the residual
values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised and could have
an impact on the profit in future years.

ii) Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments
When the fa1r value of financial assets and financial 11ab111t1es recorded in the Statement 0
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value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
model etc. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

iii) Retirement benefit obligations

The costs of retirement benefits and present value of the retirement benefit obligations are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, retirement benefit
obligations are sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

iv) Unbilled revenue

The unbilled revenue is calculated using average of last three months consumption for the
Low voltage consumer. This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted
in prior years and reflects the billing profile of the customers. Actual electricity usage could
differ from those estimates.
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RATIO ANALYSIS




BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

| Ratio Analysis

Particulars 2024 2023
NP ratio 6.80% 5.67%
Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio (Sales/ Average Net Block) 0.689 0.580
Debtors Turnover Ratio (Energy Sales/ Average Debtors) 7.845 8.753
Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 0.794 0.983
Quick Ratio (Current Asset-Inventory/Current Liabilities) 0.65 0.791
Interest Coverage Ratio (Profit before interest & tax/Interest) 3.924 2.787
Debt Service Coverage Ratio ( PAT+Dep+Interest/ (Interest +
Principal Repayment) L e
Gearing Ratio (Debt /Gross Value of Fixed Asset) 39.25% 37.37%
Gearing on net Fixed asset 56.55% 52.61%
Debt Equity Ratio (Debt/average Equity) 127.80% | 116.64%
I?ett'uin on Capital Employed (EBIT/(Capital+Reserve+long term 10.77% 8.24°%
liability)
Return on asset (Profit after tax)/average net total assets 4.69% 3.29%
10.41% 7.11%

Return on equity ( return available /Average Equity)

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

— .

Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762

Date: 3/ \q/Qeas

Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
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Rinzing Financial Private Limited

1. INVENTORY DISCREPANCIES AND CAPITALIZATION ISSUES AT STORAGE
LOCATION 0016 (PLANT THD1)

Project Information

Project Name

Construction of 33kV D/C Line using ACSR (Wolf)
Conductor from 132/33kV Yurmoo substation to Project

Site, Samcholing

Project Completion Date 10/27/2022
Asset Code per SAP: 16549
Asset Name per SAP 33kV D/C Wolf Cond. from Yurmoo SS to Semcholing

Upon reviewing the inventory records and associated project details for the construction of
the 33kV D/C Line using ACSR (Wolf) Conductor from the 132/33kV Yurmoo Substation to
the Project Site in Samcholing, we identified several discrepancies that impact the accuracy of
inventory balances and capitalization.

As of December 31, 2024, the total inventory balance at Storage Location 0016 amounted to
Nu. 1,815,631.64. The discrepancies identified are categorized as follows:

Resolved
lfli; Amount ?\Il:)s. Issues and moved

: : : to MAR
ik 75,523.59 | 1.1 | Inventories used during the project but Yes
omitted from capitalization =
2 3,221.65 | 1.2 | Reclassification of mistakenly capitalized Yes
asset as inventory =
3 1,711,986.4 | 1.3 | Missing inventories or unaccounted No

transfers to RSD, Gelephu
4 24900 | 1.4 | Unidentified account balances Yes
Total 1,815,631.64

These discrepancies, as observed between SAP records and physical inventories, are detailed

as follows:
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1.3. MISSING INVENTORIES AND UNACCOUNTED TRANSFERS TO RSD,
GELEPHU [7.2.17]

After the completion of the project, the contractor returned the unused inventories to BPCL.
The cost of incomplete and missing inventories was recovered from the contractor, while the
remaining complete and usable inventories were officially handed over to BPCL as per the
handover document dated December 14, 2022.

The inventories were then physically transferred to the Regional Stores Division (RSD),
Gelephu. However, the transfer could not be updated in SAP due to discrepancies between
the physical stock and SAP records. As a result:

SAP still reflects these inventories at their original storage location, despite their

physical transfer.

A physical verification at RSD, Gelephu revealed that some of the transferred

inventories were missing, amounting to Nu. 1,283,878.16.

The discrepancies have prevented the completion of SAP updates, resulting in an
overstatement of inventory balances at the original location and an unaccounted

reduction at RSD, Gelephu.

The table below details the missing inventory items:

(Amount in Nu.)
Per
Code Material Description Per SAP* Physical | Difference
Verification
295 | Preform termination - 150sqgqmm 30,780.00 - 30,780.00
296 | Guy preform for 7/8 SWG wire 11,484.00 11,484.00 -
344 | Mid span Jointing Sleeve (Wolf) 2,386.35 - 2,386.35
352 | P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 76,120.00 - 76,120.00
378 | Guy Insulator 14,302.65 9,731.70 4,570.95
381 | 33 kV Pin Insulator 319,928.67 10;751.36°|.- 309,197.31
486 | G.I.Wire 8 SWG 2,578.83 - 2,578.85
490 | Gl stay wire 7/8SWG 113,071.96 87,321.09 25,750.87
514 | Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 kV) 2,416.00 - 2,416.00
517 | Spike Earthing 51,478.68 - 51,478.68
552 | Gl stay set assembly 85,675.52 45,515.12 40,160.40
555 | GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long 74,880.00 74,880.00 -
993 | Anti-climbing Device 5,401.20 4,861.08 540.12
1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator 348,040.00 - | 348,040.00
assembly
1501 | Preform deadend termination-shield 7,347.12 7,013.16 333.96
wire
2088 | GI stranded Earth Shield Wire 7/2 mm 34,519.43 - 34,519.43
5586 | Galvanized Cross arm assly H-frame 31,772.67 31,772.67 -
©)
5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 367,908.78 141,999.88 | 225,908.90
5593 | Galvanised Stay Clamp for HT 8,394.54 2,798.18 5,596:36+
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 12m 123,500.00 - | 1233867007
1,711,986.40 |  428,108.24 | 1,283/878.16,|
The SAP records and the handover report reflect the same quantity of items. %ﬁ( %(‘%) >
90 XN
s B
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Since SAP does not match the actual physical inventory, these discrepancies require urgent
reconciliation to ensure accurate financial reporting and inventory control.

Recommendation:

e Immediate Reconciliation of SAP Records and Physical Inventory
Conduct a joint reconciliation involving BPCL's Finance, Procurement, and Warehouse teams
to compare SAP records, handover documents, and the physical stock at RSD, Gelephu.

Identify and document the reasons for the stock discrepancies, including potential losses,
misallocation, or unrecorded transfers.

Update SAP to reflect the actual inventory status at each location.

e Formal Investigation of Missing Inventories
Initiate an internal review to determine whether the missing inventories were misplaced, lost,
or unaccounted for during the transfer process.
If necessary, recover losses through appropriate measures, including contractor liability or
internal responsibility checks.

Management Response:

AUC 49473 Details and Recovery from Contractor.
After the capitalization of 33kV line at Samchholing, Trongsa, the spare materials were added to AUC
number 49473 under TPO, Changedaphu amounting to Nu. 1,906,372.89.

However, the contractor didn’t return materials worth Nu. 194,386.48 to the project office,
Samchholing. So, a total of Nu. 291,579.73 (150% of the total cost) were recovered from the contractor.

The cost of the remaining materials in the AUC amounts to Nu. 1,711,986.41.

Material Material Description Oty Rate | Unit Amount
295 Preform termination - 150sqmm 81 380.00 | NO 30,780.00
296 Guy preform for 7/8 SWG wire 33 348.00| NO 11,484.00
344 Mid span Jointing Sleeve (olf) 5 47727 | NO 2,386.35
352 P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 346 220.00 | NO 76,120.00
378 Guy Insulator 97 14745 | NO 14,302.65
381 33 kV Pin Insulator 477 670.71 | SET 319,928.67
486 G.I.Wire 8 SWG 29:55 8227 | KG 2,578.83
490 GI stay wire 7/8SWG 1,264.08 89.45| KG 113,071.96
514 Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 16 151.00 | NO 2,416.00

kV)
517 Spike Earthing 59 87252\ SEL 51,478.68
552 GI stay set assembly 64 | 1,338.68 | SET 85,675.52
555 GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long 96 780.00 | SET 74,880.00
993 Anti-climbing Device 10 540.12| NO 5,401.20
1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator 308 | 1,130.00 | SET 348,040.00
assembly
1501 Preform deadend termination-shield 66 111.32 | NO 7,347.12
wire
2088 | GI stranded Earth Shield Wire 7/2 1.910 | 18,073.00 | KM 34,519.43
mm
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Material Material Description Oty Rate | Unit Amount

5586 Galvanized Cross arm assly H-frame 37 10,590.69 | SET. 3L,772.67
©)

5587 Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 57| 6,454.54 | SET 367,908.78

5593 Galvanised Stay Clamp for HT 42 199.87 | NO 8,394.54

5808 GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 4130875.00 | SET 123,500.00
12m

TOTAL | 1,711,986.40

Conversion of AUC to Inventory.
The AUC (49473) amount needed to be converted into inventory in order to systematically issue the
materials from TPO, Changedaphu storage location to other offices.
With the support from officials from SUIT, the AUC cost was successfully converted to inventory and
now lies in the storage location of TPO, Changedaphu (Refer Table 1 for the details).

Out of the missing materials reported as difference in the observation with value of Nu. 1,283,878.16
incomplete materials worth Nu. 630,809.32 have been returned by the project office to RSD as shown
in the table below. The balance materials worth Nu. 653,068.84 shall be reconciled, updated in the SAP

by the concerned project officials and shall hand over physically to the RSD.

Incomplete
Code Material Description Difference (handed over Missing
to RSD)
295 | Preform termination - 150sqmm 30,780.00 |  30,780.00 0.00
296 | Guy preform for 7/8 SWG wire -
344 | Mid span Jointing Sleeve (Wolf) 2,386.35 954.54 1,431.81
352 | P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 76,120.00 4,840.00 71,280.00
378 | Guy Insulator 4,570.95 4570.95
381 33 kV Pin Insulator 309,197.31 3353.55 305,843.76
486 | G.I.Wire 8 SWG 2,578.83 2,578.83
490 | Gl stay wire 7/8SWG 25,750.87 25,750.87
514 Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 2,416.00 1963 453.00
kV)
517 | Spike Earthing 51,478.68 | 51,478.68
552 | Gl stay set assembly 40,160.40 |  38821.72 1,338.68
555 | GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long -
993 | Anti-climbing Device 540.12 540.12
1272 33kV  Polymer  Strain insulator 348,040.00 | 212,440.00 135,600.00
assembly
1501 | Preform deadend termination-shield 333.96 333.96
wire
2088 | GI stranded Earth Shield Wire 7/2 34,519.43
mim
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Incomplete
Code Material Description Difference (handed over Missing
to RSD)

5586 | Galvanized Cross arm assly H-frame =
(©O)

5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 225,908.90 | 154,908.96 70,999.94

5593 | Galvanised Stay Clamp for HT 5,5696.36 3,197.92 2,398.44
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 123,500.00 | 123,500.00 0.00
12m

1,283,878.16 | 630,809.32 653,068.84

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

For the materials listed incomplete set amounting to Nu. 630,809.32 items, the Management will form
a team and assign the tasks to make the items in complete set after the proper assessment. For those
items that can’t be made in complete set, further assessment on their usage will be done with proper
valuation of the items. Regarding the missing items amounting to Nu.653,068.84, re-verification and
reconciliation will be carried out accordingly by the same team as recommended by the auditor.
Necessary treatment shall be carried out by the department as per the company norms. The action taken
report on the same will be submitted to RAA latest by first quarter of fiscal year 2025. Considering the
above, it is requested to drop the observation.

Auditor’s Further Commnents:

We acknowledge the management’s response and their commitment to resolving the identified issues.
As part of the Action Taken Report (ATR) for the RAA’s review, management is required to provide a
detailed report outlining the reconciliation and revaluation processes undertaken for the incomplete and
missing inventories. Additionally, management should ensure that all necessary adjustments are
accurately reflected in the SAP system to align with the physical stock records.

Who is accountable?

Direct Accountability- Name: Amrit Bdr. Limbu, Designation: Associate Engineer, CID:
11204000983

Supervisory Accountability- Name: Tshering Wangchuk, Designation: Head, TOMU,
Yurmoo, CID: 10711001814
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1. OMISSION OF INVENTORIES FROM ASSET CAPITALIZATION [7.2.18]

During our inquiry with the focal person at BPCL, we identified three inventory items,
totaling Nu. 75,523.59, were issued to the contractor and utilized during construction.
However, these items were omitted from capitalization upon project completion.

The omission occurred because the physical transfer of these materials was not accurately
recorded in SAP, leaving them classified as "in transit" instead of being accounted for as part
of the capitalized assets. Despite their confirmed use in the project, their incorrect status in
SAP resulted in their exclusion from asset capitalization.

Code Material Description l\}llzlal;?:e Quantity AH‘\T(:.I)M
514 | Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 kV) NO 190 18,617.83
514 | Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 kV) NO 12 701.01
576 | ABS/LBS unit 33 kV (Three phase) SET 2 56,204.75

Total 75,523.59

This omission has understated depreciation expenses and asset balances since the
capitalization date (October 27, 2022) while simultaneously overstating inventory balances
in the financial records.

Recommendation:
To rectify the omission of inventories from asset capitalization and ensure accurate financial
reporting, we recommend the following actions:

e Immediate Capitalization Adjustment
The omitted inventory items, totaling Nu. 75,523.59, should be capitalized as part of the
project assets, effective from the original capitalization date.
Adjustments should be made in SAP and the financial statements to reflect the true value of
capitalized assets.

¢ Correction of Depreciation
Recalculate and adjust depreciation expenses from the capitalization date to account for the
previously omitted assets.

e Strengthening Inventory and Asset Transfer Processes
Implement a systematic review process to ensure that all materials issued for construction are

correctly recorded and capitalized.
Establish regular reconciliations between SAP records and physical stock to identify and
correct discrepancies in material status.
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Management Response:
The aforementioned materials were left out during the capitalization works. These materials were in
transit and unknowingly missed out. The same will be issued and added into the capital works this year.

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

Since the project was already capitalized on 27t October 2022, the value of the materials was seen as
not material compared to the overall value of the work. Hence, it was decided to expense off the said
materials in line BPC AMMR in fiscal year 2025 and accordingly the same shall be adjusted in the
P&L account of 2025. The system adjustment will be made latest by 28 February 2025.

It will also be ensured in future projects that all materials issued to the construction of an asset will be
correctly recorded and capitalized. Considering the above, it is requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

As the adjustment is considered immaterial and does not impact the financial statements for the period
ending December 31, 2024, we acknowledge management's assurance that the necessary adjustments
will be completed by February 28, 2025. Accordingly, this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:
In line with management’s commitment to making the necessary adjustments in 2025, the accuracy
and completeness of these adjustments will be reviewed during the subsequent audit.
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2. RECLASSIFICATION OF MISTAKENLY CAPITALIZED ASSET AS INVENTORY
[7.2.37]

During our review, we identified inventory items that were mistakenly capitalized as assets.
These items were never issued to the contractor for construction and remained physically
stored at BPCL throughout the project. However, their entire value was incorrectly included
in asset capitalization, even though they were not actually used in construction.

Since these inventories were still present in BPCL’s stores, the management, through Note
Sheet 09/BPC/TPO/2024/Vol-1/214 dated November 4, 2024, decided to reclassify these
items from capitalized assets to inventory. This reclassification was intended to properly
account for these materials in SAP and allow their future utilization.

However, the reclassification was conducted at an incorrect rate of Nu. 1 per item instead of
their actual cost, resulting in a discrepancy of Nu. 14,989,784.38 between the recorded and

actual values, as detailed below:
(Amounts in Nu.)

Code Material Description vPeSrhlzT;te Recalculation | Difference
352 | P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 153.00 33,660.00 33,507.00
486 | G.I.Wire 8 SWG 491.25 42,871.41 42,380.16
493 | Anti- climbing device (156.1 mm) 256.00 138,240.00 137,984.00
517 | Spike Earthing 4.00 3,490.08 3,486.08
552 | GI stay set assembly 257.00 344,040.76 343,783.76
555 | GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long 838.00 653,640.00 652,802.00
1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator 614.00 693,820.00 693,206.00
assembly
1987 | 33kV Polymer Pin Insulator Assembly 332.00 215,800.00 215,468.00
5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 197.00 1,271,544.38 | 1,271,347.38
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 12m 357.00 | 11,022,375.00 | 11,022,018.00
Galvanised cross arm assembly H- 21.00 244,650.00 244,629.00
Frame
CT/PT 300/200/1A 33kV 1.00 165,000.00 164,999.00
CT/PT 300/150/1A 33kV 1.00 164,175.00 164,174.00
Total 3,522.25 | 14,993,306.63 | 14,989,784.38

Rates used for recalculation have been sourced from the SAP inventory balance for the same items.

Impact of the Reclassification Error
Overstatement of Capitalized Asset Value: The mistakenly capitalized inventories

resulted in an inflated asset balance.

Understatement of Inventory Value: The reclassification at Nu. 1 per item
significantly undervalued inventory balances.

Overstatement of Depreciation Expense: Since these items were not used in the
construction, depreciation expenses for previous periods were incorrectly recorded.
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Furthermore, following the reclassification on November 4, 2024, some of these items were
subsequently issued to other stores, projects, or used for repairs and maintenance. However,
due to the incorrect reclassification at Nu. 1 per item, their issuance values were also
understated. This led to a discrepancy of Nu. 1,418,832.59 as shown below:

(Amounts in Nu.)

Code Material Description PeSrhI:I;te Recalculation | Difference
486 | G.I.LWire 8 SWG 9.60 837.79 828.19
493 | Anti- climbing device (156.1 mm) 16.00 8,640.00 8,624.00
552 | GI stay set assembly 156.00 208,834.08 208,678.08
1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator assembly 72.00 81,360.00 81,288.00
5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 8.00 51,636.32 51,628.32
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 12m 16.00 494,000.00 | 493,984.00

Galvanised cross arm assembly H-Frame 21.00 244,650.00 244,629.00
CT/PT 300/200/1A 33kV 1.00 165,000.00 | 164,999.00
CT/PT 300/150/1A 33kV 1.00 164,175.00 | 164,174.00
Total 300.60 1,419,133.19 | 1,418,832.59

Rates used for recalculation have been sourced from the SAP inventory balance for the same items.

Recommendations:
e Immediate Adjustment of Reclassified Inventory Values
The management should update SAP to reflect the actual cost of reclassified inventory instead
of Nu. 1 per item.
The discrepancy of Nu. 14,989,784.38 should be corrected in financial records.

o Correction of Depreciation
The incorrectly capitalized assets have led to overstated depreciation expenses. A
reassessment should be conducted, and necessary adjustments should be made.

e Adjustment of Issued Inventory Values
The issued inventory from November 4 to December 31, 2024, should be revalued at actual
costs to correct the understatement of Nu. 1,418,832.59.

e Strengthening Internal Controls
Implement stricter validation processes to prevent incorrect capitalization of inventory items
in future projects.
Conduct regular reconciliation of physical stock with SAP records to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Management Response:

Jamjee 33kV Spare materials.

The materials used for the construction of 33kV lines were purchased by the project office directly and
were booked in project services (Project WBS). The entire cost of the materials was capitalized where
the spare materials needed to be segregated.

After seeking approval from Director, CSD, the materials lying physically at the project site without
the inventories record of account, were taken in the stock inventory record at the rate of value 1.00.
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SL.No | Description Unit | Quantity | Rate | Amount | Valuation
o [L2Mselubslanbole el g . BB S0 000 | Goh ] REFLIB
(including nuts and bolt)
) 33kv Polymer strain insulator Set 614 I 614.00 | OSM_REFUB
assembly
3 33 kV Polymer Pin insulator Set 332 1 332.00 | O5M_REFUB
4 Galvanised cross arm assembly Set 71 1 21.00 | O&M_REFUB
H-Frame
5 Galvanised cross brace arm Set 197 1 197.00 | O&M_REFUB
assembly
6 Gl stay set Set 257 1 257.00 | O&M_REFUB
7 Anti climbing Device Set 256 1 256.00 | O&M_REFUB
8 Spike Earthing Nos. 4 1 4.00 O&M_REFUB
9 GI wire 8swg kg 491.25 1 491.25 | O&M_REFUB
10 CT/PT 300/200/1A 33kV Nos. 1 1 1.00 O&M_REFUB
11 CT/PT 300/150/1A 33kV Nos. 1 1 1.00 O&M_REFUB
12 GI eye Hook Nos. 838 1 838.00 | O&M_REFUB
13 PG clamp Wolf Set 153 1 153.00 | O&M_REFUB
TOTAL 3,522.25

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

Since these materials were purchased specifically as a spare for the Project, all the materials were
capitalized along with the project as per the BPC’s Accounting Manual 5.3.5.e, which states that all
the capital spares have to be capitalized. The value Nu.1 against each item quantity was specifically
assigned to trace the movement of balance inventory and also for the physical verification and further
to avoid duplication in amount booking when the materials are utilized. If the materials are assigned
their acquisition cost, it will lead to double booking of cost and also inflate the value of the assets.
Considering the above, it is requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge the management’s response and the rationale provided for capitalizing spare materials
in accordance with BPCL’s Accounting Manual (Section 5.3.5.e) and established practices. Based on
discussions during the Audit Exit Meeting, it was initially decided to move this observation to MAR
11, meaning the issue would not be pursued further in subsequent audits.

However, upon further consultation with the Royal Audit Authority (RAA) and subsequent
discussions with the Accounting & Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan (AASBB), we conclude that
while BPCL’s internal manual allows for the capitalization of spares, this treatment is inconsistent with
BAS 2020, specifically BAS 16 (Property, Plant, and Equipment) and BAS 2 (Inventories):

o BAS 16.8 states that an item should be recognized as Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE)
only if it is expected to be used in production or supply of goods and services, for
rental, or administrative purposes, and is expected to generate future economic
benefits.

e BAS 16.12 further clarifies that spare parts and servicing equipment are generally
classified as inventory and only capitalized if they meet the definition of PPE (i.e.,
they are used in the construction or maintenance of a specific asset and provide long-
term benefits). 5
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e BAS 2.6 defines inventories as assets held for sale, in the process of production, or
consumed in operations. Since the spare materials were never utilized for the construction
of assets and remained in stock for future use, they should have been classified as inventory
under BAS 2 rather than being capitalized as assets.

Given the significant volume of projects undertaken over the years, and the potential cumulative
misstatement in BPCL’s financial statements, retrospective corrections may not be feasible.
Accordingly, this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:

However, to ensure compliance with BAS 2020 going forward, BPCL must discontinue the
practice of capitalizing spare materials effective January 1, 2025, even if internal policies
allow it.

This issue is now moved to MAR I, meaning that subsequent audits will verify whether BPCL complies
with BAS 2020 on this matter. Failure to adhere to the correct accounting treatment from 2025
onward may result in a formal audit finding in future audits, potentially impacting the audit
opinion.

Management’s Further Response:

BPC acknowledges the recommendation made by the Auditors and to comply with BAS 2020,
specifically BAS 16 & BAS 2, going forward, BPC wouldn't be capitalizing the capital spares to asset
but have it shown in inventories, if any prospectively.
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3. UNIDENTIFIED ITEM BALANCES [7.2.18]
During our review of the inventory records, we identified an item with a balance of Nu. 24,900

reflected under the same store in SAP. However, upon further inquiry, it was confirmed that
this item no longer exists physically. The details of the item are as follows:

i Sl Unit of ; Amount
Code Material Description : Meiiie Quantity (Nu.)
65 | Arm. Al cable 3Cx300sqmm, XLPE Ins, 33kV M 249.00 24,900.00

Since this item does not physically exist, its presence in SAP results in an overstatement of
inventory balances.

We recommend that management conduct a thorough investigation to confirm the status of
this item. If it is determined to be non-existent, appropriate adjustments should be made to
SAP to remove the incorrect balance and ensure that the inventory records accurately reflect
the actual stock.

Management Response:

The material utilized for the special DHI works at Dagapela are still recorded in the inventory of project
plant THD1 and have not been updated in the system. The concerned project officials will adjust,
capitalize and correct the records in the SAP system accordingly.

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

Since the project was already capitalized on 23rd May 2023, the material amounting to Nu. 24,900.00
will be expensed off in fiscal year 2025 and accordingly the same shall be adjusted in P&L account of
2025. The system adjustment will be made latest by 28th February 2025. Considering the above, it is
requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

As the adjustment is considered immaterial and does not impact the financial statements for the period
ending December 31, 2024, we acknowledge management's assurance that the necessary adjustments
will be completed by February 28, 2025. Accordingly, this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:
In line with management’s commitment to making the necessary adjustments in 2025, the accuracy
and completeness of these adjustments will be reviewed during the subsequent audit.
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4. LAND LEASE NOT ACCOUNTED FOR PER BFRS 16 [1.2.85]

BPCL has entered into lease agreements as a lessee for the lands listed below, but the treatment
for these leases has not been performed in accordance with the requirements of BFRS 16:
Leases.

According to BFRS 16, lessees are required to recognize lease liabilities and corresponding
right-of-use (ROU) assets for all leases, except for short-term leases (less than 12 months) and
low-value assets, on the balance sheet. The failure to account for these leases in compliance
with BERS 16 results in the understatement of both liabilities and assets, which impacts the
financial statements and related disclosures.

The following land lease agreements have not been accounted for under BFRS 16:

(Amount in Nu.)
SIL. Lease Name Initial Payment | Last Payment Lease | Yearly Rent
No. Date Date Tenure Payment
1 | SRF - Tendruk, 29-May-2024 29-May-2033 10 5,880.60
Samtse
2. | 5RE - 2-Feb-2023 1-Jan-2027 5 30,361.32
Endocholing,
Trongsa
3 | SL - Pasakha, 27-Oct-2023 27-Oct-2032 10 538,620.00
Phuentsholing
Recommendation:

e Immediate Recognition of Lease Liabilities and ROU Assets

Management should immediately recognize the lease liabilities and corresponding right-
of-use assets for the above land leases, based on the present value of future lease payments
as of the commencement date for each lease.

e Compliance with BFRS 16:

Management must ensure that future leases are properly accounted for in accordance with
BFRS 16 to avoid similar issues going forward. This includes updating internal procedures
to identify all leases and ensure timely recognition of lease liabilities and ROU assets.

e Restatement of Financial Statements:

If necessary, BPCL should restate prior period financial statements to reflect the
recognition of the lease liabilities and ROU assets for these land leases in compliance with
BERS 16.
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Management Response:
In response to your findings, we have taken the necessary steps to ensure compliance with BFRS 16.
Specifically, we have made the following entries:
1. Recognition of Right-of-Use (ROU) Assets:
We have recorded the ROU entries for the following assets:
o Asset Code 58038 for Pasakha, Phuentsholing RSD
e Asset Code 58039 for the Trongsa, Tintibi TOMS
o Asset Code 58040 for Tendruk, Samtse ESD

2. Lease Liabilities and ROU Entries:
We have recognized the lease liabilities and corresponding ROU entries under Document
Numbers 100100162, 100100163, and 100100164, dated January 1, 2024.

3. Depreciation for 2023:
We have accounted for depreciation for the year 2023 for the Pasakha, Phuentsholing asset and the
Trongsa, Tintibi office, documented under Document Numbers 2675 and 2676, dated January 1,
2024. As this depreciation pertains to the prior year, we have transferred the depreciation to
Retained Earnings, as reflected in Document Number 100100169, dated December 31, 2024.

4. Final Transactions for Lease Liability and Finance Cost for 2024:
The final transactions related to lease liability and finance costs for the year 2024 have been
recorded under Document Number 100100166, dated December 31, 2024.

We are committed to ensuring that all future leases are accounted for in accordance with BFRS 16 and
will continue to update our internal procedures to prevent similar issues from arising in the future.
Thank you for your guidance on this matter. Please let us know if you require any further information
or clarification.

The observation for land lease agreements that have not been accounted for under BFRS 16 is completed,
hence kindly requested to drop the observation/memo.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s corrective actions in recognizing lease liabilities and Right-of-Use
(ROU) assets in compliance with BFRS 16. As the necessary adjustments have been made, this
observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To ensure ongoing compliance, management should provide clear disclosures on corrective actions
taken and maintain proper documentation for future leases. The implementation of these measures will
be reviewed in subsequent audits.
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5. DISCREPANCIES OF BOBL LOAN BALANCES AND OVERSTATEMENT OF
INTEREST EXPENSE [1.2.66]

A review of BPCL’s loan balances as of December 31, 2024, identified discrepancies between
SAP records and loan statements issued by the Bank of Bhutan Limited (BOBL). The principal
amount in SAP was overstated by Nu. 7,038,542.14, while accrued interest was understated
by Nu. 397,521.93, leading to a total discrepancy of Nu. 6,641,020.21.

(Amount in Nu.)
December 31, 2024 Per SAP Per BOBL Difference Remarks
Principal Amount 650,908,068.39 | 643,869,526.25 7,038,542.14 | Overstatement
Accrued Interest 4,285,808.41 4,683,330.34 (397,521.93) | Understatement
Total Loan Amount | 655,193,876.80 | 648,552,856.59 6,641,020.21

Most of the above differences stem from prior-year periods, as similar variances were noted
as of December 31, 2023, with an overstatement of principal by Nu. 7,851,560.08 and an
understatement of accrued interest by Nu. 3,537,649.83.

(Amount in Nu.)
December 31, 2023 Per SAP Per BOBL Difference Remarks
Principal Amount 675,020,046.56 | 667,168,486.48 7,851,560.08 | Overstatement
Accrued Interest 4,313,910.25 7,851,560.08 | (3,537,649.83) | Understatement
Total Loan Amount | 679,333,956.81 | 675,020,046.56 4,313,910.25

The issue arises due to the following practices:

BPCL currently makes quarterly loan payments before the Bank of Bhutan Limited (BOBL)
finalizes the interest charge for the last month of the quarter. This timing difference results in
inconsistencies in how the principal and interest amounts are reduced.

Furthermore, the actual interest BOBL charges often differ from the estimates outlined in the
repayment schedule, which BPCL relies on for recording transactions. This practice
introduces discrepancies between BPCL’s records and the bank’s actual charges.

Recommendations:
1. Prior Period Adjustments: BPCL should immediately adjust SAP loan balances to
align with BOBL's loan statements, ensuring prior-period discrepancies are corrected.

2. Accurate Interest Recording: Future interest payments should be recorded strictly
based on actual charges from BOBL to prevent continued mismatches.

3. Improved Payment Coordination: BPCL should coordinate with BOBL to ensure
payments are processed accurately, preferably by submitting a demand note directly
to the loan officer.

4. Ongoing Reconciliation: A structured reconciliation process should be implemented
to routinely verify and align SAP records with bank statements, preventing recurring
discrepancies.
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Management Response:

An adjustment entry of Nu. 7,038,542.14 was made on 31.12.2024, in consultation with the Auditors,
under document number 100100138, which involved debiting the BOB ATS loan account and crediting
the interest on the loan. The adjustment for the unpaid portion of interest as indicated in the report has
been made for the amount of Nu.397,521.93 via document number 1900000001.

BPC had been making the payment based on the projected schedule provided by BOB for the ATS loan.
Each payment, covering both principal and interest, was made via a forwarding letter on the scheduled
date. However, due to the floating interest rate, discrepancies were identified in the calculations from
the Bank's side. Since the reconciliation has been completed, proper consultation will be ensured before
the remittance of principal and interest payment. Therefore, it is requested to drop this observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s corrective actions, including the adjustments made on December 31,
2024, to align SAP loan balances with the Bank of Bhutan Limited (BOBL) loan statements. As the
discrepancies identified in 2023 were material but have been addressed through corrections in 2024,
this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:

To ensure transparency, management should provide proper disclosures regarding these adjustments
in the financial statements. Additionally, we recommend establishing regular reconciliation processes
with BOBL to prevent similar discrepancies in the future. The implementation of these measures will
be monitored in subsequent audits.

104




Rinzing Financial Private Limited

6. FAILURE TO CLEAR AGED RETENTION MONEY (LIABILITY ACCOUNTS) OPEN
ITEMS [1.2.85]

BPCL’s retention money liability accounts in SAP reflect a total created retention of Nu.
465,901,771.93, out of which Nu. 70,283,557.79 has been released. However, these released
amounts remain uncleared in SAP, indicating a significant backlog of aged open items.
Despite the company’s automated clearing process, manual intervention to resolve items that
remain uncleared has not been performed.

(Amount in Nu.)
Account Name Retention Created | Retention Released
Retention from Suppliers (298,404,220.84) 47,924,320.41
Retention from Contractors (43,119,722.23) 9,643,269.59
Retention from Others (124,377,828.86) 12,715,967.79
Total (465,901,771.93) 70,283,557.79

Risks Identified:

Operational Inefficiencies: Aged open items complicate reconciliations and may lead
to financial misstatements.

Reputational Risk: Unresolved retention money could result in disputes with
contractors and suppliers.

Audit Trail Weakness: The failure to clear retention money weakens the audit trail,
making it difficult to verify transactions and increasing compliance risks.

Recommendations:

Immediate Clearing of Aged Items: Conduct a detailed review and manually clear all
outstanding retention money balances.

Strengthen Internal Controls: Establish a structured process for regular identification
and clearing of uncleared items that automation does not resolve.

Enhanced Monitoring and Reporting: Implement periodic monitoring using SAP’s
aging reports and escalate unresolved items to management.

Staff Training and Awareness: Train finance personnel on the importance of clearing
retention money and how to use SAP’s manual clearing functionalities effectively.

Periodic Reconciliations: Conduct regular reconciliations of the retention money
account to ensure accuracy and completeness in financial reporting.
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Management Response:

The observation recorded for the Failure to Clear Aged Retention Money (Liability Accounts) which
has remained as an open items have been sorted and cleared in SAP. It will also be ensured that
henceforth, clearing of such items are monitored and reviewed on a regular basis. The details with
reasons are attached herewith in Annexure 1. Therefore kindly drop the observation related to it.

The memo has been treated as settled:
We acknowledge management’s response and the corrective actions taken to clear the aged retention
money open items in SAP. As the issue has been resolved, this observation is considered closed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To mitigate the risk of recurrence, management should ensure ongoing monitoring and timely clearance
of retention money balances. This observation has been moved to MAR I for continued oversight in
future audits.
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7. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH UNPAID CHEQUES POLICY [1.2.85]

BPCL has established policies and internal practices regarding the handling of unpaid
cheques to ensure proper financial reporting and compliance. However, we noted that
cheques totaling Nu. 766,105.54 have not been transferred to the appropriate accounts,
contrary to both the written policy and standard practice.

Policy Requirement:
As per Section 8.4.1 - General Guidelines, the following procedures must be followed for
unpaid cheques:
1. Cheques issued but not presented within six months must be transferred to the Unpaid
Cheques Account, where they are recognized as a liability in the financial statements.

2. At the end of each reporting period, all stale cheques should be reviewed. Upon
obtaining approval from the competent authority, they should be transferred to the
Liabilities No Longer Required account and derecognized from the financial
statements.

Standard Practice at BPCL:

In addition to the written policy, BPCL follows a standard internal practice where the unpaid
cheques that remain under ‘Unpaid Cheques’” GL account for more than two years are
transferred to the ‘Liabilities No Longer Required” account as income. These cheques are then
removed from the financial statements, as the obligation is deemed no longer payable.
Despite these established policies and practices, our review found that Nu. 766,105.54 worth
of unpaid cheques remains in the liabilities account without evidence of efforts to transfer
them to Liabilities No Longer Required, as per the required process.

Document | Document Amount
Number Date Tea o) (Nu.)
100037683 | 8/23/2021 | Cheque more than six months 6,046.76
100037685 | 8/23/2021 | Cheque more than six months 54,600.00
100045721 | 8/25/2022 | Chq of KGUMSB against refund of d/work 687,353.12
100053287 9/14/2022 | 100019681 (Being refund of balance fund from 3,963.83
DW)
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1500008619(settlement of bills) 1,411.00
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1500011830(Sett. of Bill No. 3872 dt. 02. 2,695.00
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1500011121 (Sett. of B/ No.3687 dt. 10.07.2021 911.40
Sona
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1800492057 490.00
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1800607627 1,200.00
100101618 | 12/31/2022 | uncashed cheque transfer to unpaid g/1 7,434.43
Total 766,105.54

Impact of Non-Compliance:
e Overstatement of Liabilities: Failure to transfer unpaid cheques results in an inflated

liability balance in the financial statements.

e Understatement of Income: Delayed recognition of income leads to financial
misstatements in the reporting period when these cheques should have been

derecognized.
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e Policy and Control Weakness: Non-adherence to internal policies and standard
practices weakens financial discipline and accountability.

Recommendation:
e Immediate Transfer of Unpaid Cheques: BPCL should review and transfer all
cheques that have remained unpaid for over two years to the Liabilities No Longer
Required account, following the established internal practice.

o Strengthen Review and Approval Processes: A structured review of unpaid cheques
should be conducted at the end of each reporting period, and upon approval, the
necessary accounting adjustments should be made.

e Enforce Policy Compliance: BPCL should ensure strict adherence to the written
policy regarding stale cheques, including maintaining an updated register for unpaid
cheques to track their status.

e Improve Internal Controls: The finance team should be trained on the importance of
timely transfers and maintaining compliance with both policy and standard practices
to ensure accurate financial reporting.

Management Response:
The observations regarding the unpaid cheque’s have been sorted and transferred to the appropriate
General Ledger as per AMMRR 2016.

The details are attached herewith in Annexure II for your kind perusal, hence the observation may
kindly be dropped.

The memo has been treated as settled:
We acknowledge management’s response and confirm that the unpaid cheques have been appropriately
transferred to the correct General Ledger as per AMMRR 2016. With the issue resolved, this

observation is considered closed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To prevent recurrence, management should maintain strict adherence to policies and internal
procedures for handling unpaid cheques. This observation has been moved to MAR I for ongoing
monitoring in future audits.
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8. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH SUPPLY RULES FOR MV/HV AND LV CONNECTIONS
[1.2.85]

As per the Supply Rules for MV/HYV (Clause 31.4) and Supply Rules for LV (Clause 30.4), the
guidelines state that:

“The supply to a customer who has not made payment for two consecutive bills shall be disconnected
by issuing a prior disconnection notice. Such notice may also be served in the bill of the customer.”
This policy is designed to ensure that overdue payments are promptly addressed, and power
supply is disconnected for defaulters as a means of enforcing payment.

The non-compliance with these guidelines was noted in the previous year’s audit, and the
management had provided assurances that such issues would not occur in the future. Based
on these assurances, the findings were moved to MAR Part L.

During this audit, we re-examined the issue by investigating the disconnection status of new
defaulters from 2024 for P/ling, Samtse and Thimphu. Out of 3,127 new defaulting customers
identified, 2,123 customers had their electricity connections not disconnected as required,
indicating a recurrence of the same issue noted in the previous year.

Breakdown of defaulting customers with dues over 60 days:

Divicion No. of Defaulting | No. of Customers No. of Customers
Customers - Disconnected Not Disconnected
P/ling 145 35 112
Samtse 56 gl 55
Thimphu 2,207 485 1722
Total 2408 519 1889

Details of Defaulting Customers with Dues Over 180 Days:

Division No. of Defaulting | No. of Customers No. of Customers
Customers Disconnected Not Disconnected
Thimphu 719 485 234
Total 719 485 234

Failure to adhere to the supply rules regarding the disconnection of electricity for defaulters

results in:

e Accumulation of Unpaid Dues: The overdue payments continue to increase,
impacting cash flow.

e Increased Financial Risk: If not promptly addressed, these outstanding dues expose
the company to potential financial losses.

Recommendations:

We recommend that management take steps to ensure compliance with the supply rules for
disconnections. This will help address the recurring instances of non-compliance, mitigate the
risk of increased dues, and improve the overall financial health of the company.
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Management Response:

We acknowledge the audit observations regarding the disconnection of defaulting customers
in accordance with the Supply Rules for MV/HV and LV connections

Due to the large customer base, it is a challenging task to disconnect all the defaulting customers at one
go. The process of connection and disconnection of customers is a continuous process and therefore,
there is a time lag.

For the specific observation made by the Audit, the responses are furnished for review by the Audit.
ESD Thimphu

a. Dues more than 60 days

ESD Thimphu is working rigorously by disconnecting more than 400 defaulting customers every
month. Since we do not disconnect on government/local holidays including Saturdays or Sundays, or
a day preceding a holiday” as per supply rules, leads to the accumulation of dues. Most of the dues as
of 31st December 2024 have been cleared within January and February 2025. Nevertheless, ESD
Thimphu is committed to disconnecting all the defaulters as per the supply rule.

b. Dues more than 180 days

The 45% of the outstanding amount pertains to one customer at Bjemina Industry. The customer was
not disconnected because the customer was allowed a staggered payment option. Out of 234 not
disconnected customers, 68 customers are under the AMI pilot project implementation scheme which
we didn’t disconnect due to the AMI project being implemented very recently. 47 customers have paid
after the disconnection report was submitted. 83 customers out of 187 have dues amount less than Nu.
1,000.00 which is in rural areas and the cost of expenditure is higher to visit to rural areas for
disconnections and then reconnections. Ve have to wait for the next billing to make a visit for the
disconnection. ESD Thimphu shall disconnect the remaining customers within February 2025.

ESD Samtse

Dues more than 60 days

All the dues as of 315t December 2024 have been cleared within January and February 2025. Henceforth,
ESD Samtse shall adhere to the supply rule and disconnect all the defaulting customers.

ESD Phuentsholing

We would like to clarify that the list of defaulting customers with dues exceeding 60 days, as reflected
in the audit report, pertains to the billing period of 31 December 2024. As of the date of this response,
all such customers have been disconnected, as evidenced by the SAP ERP records provided in
Annexure-1. Furthermore, the majority of these customers have had their supply reinstated upon
payment of the required disconnection charges.

BPC s fully committed to enforcing timely disconnections in line with the Supply Rules, the immediate
disconnection of customers upon reaching exactly 60 days of overdue payment presents challenges due
to the geographical dispersion of customers, particularly in rural areas. The travel time required to reach
rural locations results in some unavoidable delays. Ve have to wait for the next billing to make a visit
for the disconnection. Nevertheless, BPC accords the highest priority to this task and remains steadfast
in its efforts to minimize any delays in disconnection to mitigate financial risks and ensure compliance.
We sincerely appreciate the audit observations and recommendations and will continue to strengthen
our processes to address these concerns effectively.

Attachment: Annexure I, ESD, Thimphu
Amnnexure I, ESD, Samtse
Annexure 1, ESD, Phuentsholing

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):
There are practical difficulties in implementation of disconnection of defaulting customers and
challenges especially with the large customer base and in rural areas. The reports on disconnections are

being reviewed regularly by the Management. It was also informed that the issue is mainly with the LVR7 -

customers but BPC has been improving on a yearly basis and currently meeting the collection e
of 97 % for LV customers. At times the cost incurred for disconnecting a customer outw '
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amount that is to be collected from the customer bill resulting in not disconnecting the customers. The
Department will be strictly monitoring the disconnections every month and checking whether an
improvement is brought in accordance with the supply rules. A year end report of disconnections citing
the reasons of difficulties and the improvements made will be provided to RAA. Considering the above,
it is requested to drop the observation.

The mmemo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s response and the challenges faced in implementing timely
disconnections due to the large customer base and geographical dispersion in rural areas. Given
management’s commitment to monthly monitoring, improved compliance with supply rules, and the
submission of a year-end report, this observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To ensure continued compliance, management should implement the planned monitoring measures and
provide a comprehensive year-end report detailing challenges and improvements. The effectiveness of
these actions will be reviewed in the subsequent audit.

111

¢



Rinzing Financial Private Limited

9. INACCURACIES IN ASSET CUSTODIANSHIP RECORDS IN SAP [7.2.11]
9.1. Missing Custodian Details in SAP

We have noted that the following assets were missing custodian details in SAP, meaning no
responsible individual has been assigned to these assets. Missing or incorrect custodianship
details weakens control over assets, increasing the risk of misplacement or unauthorized use.

Asset Code Description Physical Quantity
4400419 | Conference Revolving Chair R.C 63 (Brown Color) 1
44003438 | Revolving Chair with Low Back i
Recommendations:

1. Update Custodian Details in SAP:

o Assign the correct custodians to the above-mentioned assets in SAP.

e Conduct a company-wide review to ensure custodianship is updated across all
divisions.

Management Response:

For the Asset code 4400419 Conference Revolving chair, this asset has been auctioned off vide
notesheet#19/BPC/Asset/CEO/2020-2023/379 dated 20.11.2023. SAP has no record of this asset since
it’s been already disposed. Therefore, we request you to kindly drop this observation.

Similarly, For Asset code 44003438, Revolving chair, this asset has been transferred to GYL_PR_SAM
with new code 44005849 vide BPC/DS/DCD/CWD/RS-12/2020/230 dt. July 20, 2021. Asset 44003438
has been deactivated since 2021 in SAP. For cross verification we recommend to check the PVR of GPO
Samtse. Therefore, we would request you to kindly verify in SAP to consider the details.

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

GPO, Jamtsholing acknowledges the observation made by the auditors, and the same has been rectified
and updated in the system. There was an overlook in entering the new asset code. The new asset code
for the revolving chair with a low back is 44005849.

The asset code for Conference Revolving Chair R.C. 63 (Brown Color) (Asset Code 4400419) was
overlooked to assign the right asset code. The right Asset Code for Conference Revolving Chair R.C. 63
(Brown Color) is now 44005707 and the same is updated in the system as well as the physical
verification report.

The physical verification of assets was once again carried out diligently, and the updated PVR was
furnished after cross-checking with SAP as per the recommendation (as attached and submitted to
finance).

Further, GPO Jamtsholing assures that in the future, physical verification shall be strictly
implemented, PVR shall be tallied with the system (SAP), and thereafter, ensure that accurate reports
shall be produced.

Since all recommendations pointed out by the auditors have been implemented and action taken, we
request to kindly drop this observation.
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The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s clarifications and the corrective actions taken to address the identified
issues. The transfer of Asset Code 44003438 (Revolving Chair with Low Back) has been verified, and
its updated asset code is properly recorded in SAP. Hence, this observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

Houwever, the discrepancy regarding the Conference Revolving Chair R.C 63 (Brown Color) (Asset
Code 4400419) appearing in the 2024 Physical Verification Report (PVR) despite being auctioned off
raises concerns about asset tracking accuracy. Management has attributed this to human error during
the PVR process and has committed to corrective measures. To prevent recurrence, it is essential that
future PVRs are thoroughly reviewed and free from such errors. This observation has been moved to
MAR Part I for continued monitoring in subsequent audits to ensure proper review and accuracy in
asset verification.
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9.2. Mismatch Between Physical Verification Report and SAP Custodian Records

A discrepancy was noted between the physical verification report and the SAP asset records,
where the recorded custodian in SAP does not match the one reflected in PVR for the
following assets. Mismatched records make it difficult to track assets, causing potential delays
in audits and reconciliations.

Asset Code Description Physical Quantity
44007105 | Manager's Table (1600x800x750mm 1
44007149 | Revolving Chair- Half Back il

Recommendations:

1. Update Custodian Details in SAP:

e Assign the correct custodians to the above-mentioned assets in SAP.
e Conduct a company-wide review to ensure custodianship is updated across all
divisions.

Management Response:

During the physical verification of moveable assets 2024 the above assets were found to be under the
custodian of Mr. Karma Melam (30003353) for sl. no. (1) and Mr. Chimmi Rinzin (30002458) for sl.
no. (2). Howeuver, the asset custodian were not updated in SAP then.

Houwever, the asset custodian has been updated in SAP now, this office would like to request the
statutory auditors to kindly drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:
We acknowledge that the asset custodianship records have been successfully updated in SAP. Hence,
this observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

Given the potential for similar issues to arise in the future, we have moved this finding to MAR I for
monitoring in future audits. We recommend that management ensures regular reviews and updates of
asset custodianship information in SAP to maintain accurate and complete records.
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